
Forsyth City Council meeting – August 4, 2015 Page 1 
 

 

MINUTES    

FORSYTH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

AUGUST 4, 2015 

CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, INVOCATION 

Mayor Howard called the meeting to order at 6:00PM and led the pledge of allegiance.   

Mr. Dodd gave the invocation.   

ROLL CALL 

Present for the meeting were Mayor Howard, Councilmembers Mike Dodd, Julius Stroud, 

Greg Goolsby, Jimmy Jones, and Eric Wilson.  Also present were City Attorney, Bobby Melton; 

City Manager, Janice Hall; Interim City Clerk, Kristal Dunn.  Councilmember Melvin Lawrence 

was absent; therefore all unanimous votes will be five (5) votes (Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, Jones and 

Wilson). 

CONSENT AGENDA 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE JULY 21, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES ($74,451.71) 

APPROVAL OF REQUISITIONS GREATER THAN $10,000 

APPROVAL OF STREETS FOR 2015 LMIG (RESURFACING) 

APPROVAL OF RIGHT OF APPEAL POLICY AMENDMENTS 

APPROVAL OF GRIEVANCE POLICY AMENDMENTS 

APPROVAL OF VACATION POLICY AMENDMENT RELATING TO DEPARTMENT 

HEADS 

Mayor Howard read the Consent Agenda.  Mr. Wilson offered a motion to approve the 

Consent Agenda.  Seconded by Mr. Stroud; the motion carried unanimously (voting in the 

affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, Jones and Wilson).  

AGENDA ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

PUBLIC HEARING FOR ADOPTION OF NEW CHAPTER 2 (ADMINISTRATION) OF 

THE CITY CODE 

 Mayor Howard opened the public hearing for comments for or against the approval of the 

new Administration Ordinance.  Mr. Bobby Melton stated that the New Chapter 2 (Administration) 

has been published in the Monroe County Reporter issues of July 22nd and July 29th and is before 

Council tonight for approval and to hear from Mr. Sam Perren from Middle Georgia Regional 

Commission and any comments from the public. Mr. Perren reviewed the changes that were made 

to the ordinance.  After no further comments, Mayor Howard closed the Public Hearing.  Mr. 

Goolsby offered a motion to adopt the new Chapter 2 (Administration) of the City Code.  Seconded 



Forsyth City Council meeting – August 4, 2015 Page 2 
 

 

by Mr. Stroud; the motion carried unanimously (voting in the affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, 

Goolsby, Jones and Wilson). 

HIGH COTTON – REQUEST TO CLOSE A PORTION OF E. ADAMS STREET ON THE 

1ST SATURDAY OF EACH MONTH 

Mrs. Hall stated that after the last meeting, where Fred Collins/High Cotton came before 

the council, she met with Mr. Randall to discuss the issue.  Mrs. Hall stated that she and Mr. 

Randall recommend installing a cross walk in front of High Cotton on E. Adams Street and to add 

signage to help.  Mr. Melton stated that because this was a private business the City needed to be 

careful with how they handled it, because they would be setting a precedent.  Mrs. Hall stated that 

the closing of E. Adams Street on the 1st Saturday in September would be pending on getting the 

crosswalk and signage in.  Mr. Dodd asked about speed bumps.  Mrs. Hall stated that this issue 

would be discussed in the work session.  Mrs. Ann Rose Bowcock and Nancy McComb, owners of 

High Cotton, came before council and stated that the Mill Market Expo was open from 9:00AM till 

6:00PM.  They also stated that they were pleased with the turn out and felt it brought in a lot of 

business for Forsyth not just the Expo.  Chuck Robinson from the Rabbit Foot came forward and 

stated that the traffic in his store had died down over the summer and the Saturday of the Expo was 

the best day he has had since the spring.  Mr. Robinson stated that he thinks it is a good thing and 

that he had has more foot traffic in the last 2 weeks, due to the advertisement of the Expo.  Mr. 

Robinson also stated he thought that the crosswalk and signage was long overdue.  Jessie Dixon 

who owns the transit business in Forsyth come forward and stated that he thinks that the Expo was 

a brilliant idea, and because you could see the barricades from a ways away it made it a lot safer.  

Patricia Scarbrough from Save a Pet come forward and stated that the barricade was easily seen and 

in plain sight, she didn’t feel like it slowed regular traffic down and doesn’t see a problem with 

shutting that piece of the road down once a month.  Pam Bittick came forward and stated that there 

are crosswalks and speed bumps in Juliette and they don’t seem to be working on slowing people 

down.  Mr. Stroud offered a motion to install traffic control devices (crosswalk and signage) before 

the 1st Saturday in September.  Seconded by Mr. Dodd.  Mr. Jones asked if from a legal standpoint 

can the City close streets for a private business.  Mr. Melton stated that we have done it for 

nonprofit festivals.  Mr. Melton stated that the City needed to look at the Expo and determine if it is 

a benefit to the City.  Mr. Stroud stated that it could be a revenue generator, we just don’t want to 

set a precedent for other businesses.  Mr. Stroud suggested we give it a three (3) month trial period, 

and see if it is successful with no accidents.  Mr. Dodd suggested we do it for one (1) month and try 

the traffic control devices.  Mrs. Hall stated that the signs had been ordered.  Mr. Goolsby stated 

that he needed to recuse himself, due to being involved with the business, but thought we should 



Forsyth City Council meeting – August 4, 2015 Page 3 
 

 

move forward with the crosswalks.  Mr. Goolsby stated that maybe they need to meet with the CVB 

and see how they could help.  Mr. Wilson stated that it was a great idea, but due to the urgency to 

close city streets, it should have been brought in earlier to the Council and things might be different.  

Mr. Jones stated we need to use CVB and MainStreet to get it legal.  Mrs. Hall stated we could sit 

down and see if we can do anything about working with CVB and MainStreet.  The Mayor called 

for the count, the motion carried with four (4) votes for (voting in the affirmative were Dodd, 

Stroud, Jones and Wilson) and one abstaining (Goolsby).   

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH MONROE COUNTY TO CONDUCT 

THE 2015 CITY ELECTIONS  

Mrs. Hall stated that the Commissioners had approved the agreement and that the cost is 

less than what was budgeted.  Mr. Jones offered a motion to approve the agreement with Monroe 

County to conduct the 2015 City Elections.  Seconded by Mr. Wilson; the motion carried 

unanimously (voting in the affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, Jones and Wilson). 

ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE MONROE COUNTY TO CONDUCT THE 2015 CITY 

ELECTION 

Mrs. Hall stated this was the Ordinance to authorize Monroe County to conduct the 2015 

City Election.  Mr. Jones offered a motion to advertise the Ordinance.  Seconded by Mr. Stroud; the 

motion carried unanimously (voting in the affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, Jones and 

Wilson). 

REPORTS 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

- Mrs. Hall stated that the Hotel/Motel Tax for January thru June had been distributed to 

the CVB and City.  CVB - $71,395.43   City - $107,093.13.  The account will be closed 

out once the check to the CVB and City clear the bank. 

- Mrs. Hall stated that Wayne Wetendorf had resigned from the CVB Board and that he 

would need to be replaced with someone from the restaurant sector.  It can be an owner 

or employee of restaurant within city limits.  If you have a suggestion get the names to 

Mrs. Hall to contact. 

- Mrs. Hall stated that she was working with IHS to order the required hardware for 

storage and developing the policy for all employees to sign prior to installing software 

on all city computers, for the Spectorsoft Monitoring Software. 

- Mrs. Hall stated that she attended the Merchants Association Meeting last night and 

that it may be combined with the promotions committee for MainStreet.  Mrs. Hall 

stated that she was looking into to revamp the newsletter that goes out with the monthly 



Forsyth City Council meeting – August 4, 2015 Page 4 
 

 

utility bills.  She would like to support business that are members of the Merchants 

Association by including something about the businesses in the newsletter.  She will 

bring back will additional information. 

- Mrs. Hall stated that the City had two (2) events this coming weekend, the MainStreet 

Concert and the Monroe Festival at Kynette Park. 

- Mrs. Hall stated that the National League of Cities will attend the next work session on 

August 18th to review the packet of information that she gave out at the last work 

session. 

- Mrs. Hall stated that the prebid meeting for CDBG Project will be August 12th at 

11:00AM at City Hall.  The Meeting is not mandatory for bidder to attend, but it is 

highly recommended.  Bid opening will be August 26th at 11:00AM at City Hall. 

- Mrs. Hall stated that the order for the Tobesofkee Bridge Replacement would be 

changing.  CC&A received the award for the Project and they included the bid for 

painting the I-Beams in the bid as requested.  At the time we did not know if the beams 

would need to be painted until the contractor removed the old bridge.  CC&A along 

with Pat Wright recommended painting the I-Beams at a cost of $4,016.  Mr. Goolsby 

stated that he thought the painting was included in the bid council approved.  Mrs. Hall 

stated that the painting and disposal of material was requested as a separate line item in 

the RFQ and the company that received the award of the bid was the only one that 

followed the instructions of the RFQ and submitted bids for each separately. 

- Mrs. Hall stated that it was reviewed in Committee Meetings last year and budgeted in 

2014 and 2015 to increase each shift within the Fire Department.  Previously it was 

increased to 3 per shift and now it is needed to increase to 4 per shift.  It was budgeted 

to add 1 Fulltime and 2 Part-time this year and they will budget next year to add the 2 

addition Fulltime by End of Year.  Additional personnel is needed to man the 

equipment and to maintain our ISO Class 2.  The Fire Department hire from within by 

moving Part-time up to Fulltime.  We will make this change with the next payroll that 

begins August 9th. 

- Mrs. Hall stated that she was working with the Regional Commission to make 

necessary amendments to Chapters 1, 3, 4 and 5.  We will review recommended 

changes to those chapters at the next work session.  We will not hold a public hearing 

until all chapters have been reviewed and all recommendations are included.  We do 

not want to hold a public hearing to amend a chapter and then find reference to that 



Forsyth City Council meeting – August 4, 2015 Page 5 
 

 

chapter in a later chapter that will require additional changes and another public 

hearing. 

- Mr. Goolsby asked that the Design & Review Board and the Planning & Zoning 

Committee be involved with the Zoning Ordinances.  Mrs. Hall stated that the Regional 

Commission met with both boards at a joint meeting to review the process of making 

changes to the Zoning Ordinances. 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

- Mr. Melton stated that the Council needed to decide about the posts.  After much 

discussion the following was decided on for the post positions:  Jones – Post 1, Wilson 

– Post 2, Lawrence – Post 3, Goolsby – Post 4, Stroud – Post 5 and Dodd – Post 6.  Mr.  

Wilson offered a motion to approve the post as presented.  Seconded by Mr. Jones; the 

motion carried unanimously (voting in the affirmative were Dodd, Stroud, Goolsby, 

Jones and Wilson). 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Howard reported that the Alternative Fuel Vehicle Committee met this afternoon 

with representatives to discuss alternative fuel vehicles.  Research will be done and a report back to 

the committee at a later date.  Mayor Howard stated that the Recreation Committee will meet 

immediately following tonight’s council meeting. 

ADHOC COMMITTEE REPORTS 

No additional report was presented from the committees. 

ADDITIONAL COUNCIL BUSINESS AND REPORTS 

- Mr. Stroud stated that Brookwood and Kynette needed more police presence in the 

areas. 

- Mr. Goolsby stated that the Council is Pro Business and that for the Reporter article the 

Council was not involved.  The Mayor stated that the City Manager and Code 

Enforcement Officer was doing their assigned job and making sure proper licenses 

were in place and that the Code Enforcement Program is there to make sure things are 

being done right.  Mr. Jones stated that the City was not doing anything different than 

any other County or City would do.   

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

- Mrs. Charlotte Hogan of 332 Blount Street, came before council to thank them for 

taking care of the problem about water running through their property.  Mrs. Hogan 

stated that she came before the Mayor and Council in April and asked for help if fixing 

the problem. 



Forsyth City Council meeting – August 4, 2015 Page 6 
 

 

 ADJOURN 

 There being no additional business to discuss, Mr. Jones offered a motion to adjourn.  

Seconded by Mr. Stroud, the motion carried unanimously, (voting in the affirmative were Dodd, 

Stroud, Goolsby, Jones and Wilson).  The meeting adjourned at 7:22PM.  

Submitted by: 

 

Kristal S. Dunn 

Interim City Clerk 


